AGENDA
MEETING
OF THE HIGHWOOD
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
Wednesday, March 13, 2019
6:30 p.m. Meeting
Meeting will be held at Highwood City Hall
2nd Floor Community Development Room
17 Highwood Avenue - Highwood, Illinois
I.

CALL TO ORDER

II.

ROLL CALL

III.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
i. November 14, 2018
ii. December 05, 2018

IV.

SCHEDULED BUSINESS
i. City of Highwood – Consideration of the Petition of Yoni Marquez for a
variance to the City’s off-street parking requirements of Chapter 8, Section 11-85 for the property commonly known as 318-320 Green Bay Road, Highwood,
Illinois 60040 (PIN# 16-15-405-032), being a building in the MX-2 Zoning
District.

V.

ADJOURNMENT

03 13 2019 P&Z AGENDA PACKET 1 of 61

1

1
2
3

CITY OF HIGHWOOD
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
17 Highwood Avenue
Highwood, IL 60040

4
November 14, 2018
6:30 p.m.

5
6
7
8
9
10
11

RE: Consideration of the Petition of William
Moorman, Billy’s Garage, 401 Sheridan Road,
(PIN # 16-15-214-014) Being an Auto Repair Shop
in the MX-1 Downtown Mixed Use
Zoning District. The Petitioner is Seeking a
Special Use Permit and Relief from Section
11-6 of the Highwood Zoning Ordinance to Permit
the Use of 401 Sheridan Road as
Automobile Repair on the Above Mentioned
Parcel.

12
13
MEMBERS PRESENT:
14
15
16
17

FERGUSON MILLS, Chairman
ROMAN BELUCH, Commissioner
CHRIS MAYER, Commissioner
FRANK CAMPOREALE, Commissioner
PAUL FABBRI, Commissioner
PAUL MARTINEZ, Commissioner

18
19

STAFF PRESENT:

20
21

SCOTT COREN, City Manager
HOWARD JABLECKI, City Attorney

22
23
24
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1

(Time now is 6:33 p.m.)

2

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

3

Motion to call the

meeting to order.

4

Before we go on the record.

5

(Whereupon the proceedings were off

6

the record.)

7

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

8

meeting to order.

9
10

Would you read the minutes or
take the roll.

11

MR. BELUCH:

12

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

13

MR. BELUCH:

14

Let's call the

Mills.
Present.

Beluch, present.

Camporeale.

15

MR. CAMPOREALE:

Yes.

16

MR. BELUCH:

17

MR. MAYER:

18

MR. BELUCH:

Fabbri.

19

MR. FABBRI:

Yes.

20

MR. BELUCH:

Martinez.

21

MR. MARTINEZ:

22

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Mayer.
Here.

Here.
Okay.

I have

23

reviewed the minutes from the June meeting.

24

The only thing that I can see requires only a
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1

pen and ink change.

2

little -- doesn't affect the minutes at all.

3

So --

4

Slyce is S-L-Y-C-E.

MR. MARTINEZ:

Another typo page 23,

5

Line 20.

The name should be Bilotti.

6

Iolotti.

That's all.

7
8

MR. BELUCH:

A

It says

I'll make a motion to

accept the minutes.

9

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Second.

10

MR. BELUCH:

Roll call.

11

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

12

(Chorus of ayes.)

13

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

All in favor.

So is this the

14

meeting that we didn't make a quorum so are

15

they getting us back?

16

MR. COREN:

17
18

I don't know.

I am not

sure.
MR. JABLECKI:

The best thing to

19

probably do, I mean, we can wait a little bit,

20

but what I would suggest is that we would open

21

the public hearing.

22

continue it to another day because if they

23

don't show and then submit a new application,

24

then we have to start the publication

If they don't show,
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1

requirements all over again.

2

some time and money to just open it, continue

3

it to another day, give them notice of the new

4

day and if they don't show again then we can

5

strike it, but that would be my recommendation.

6

MR. COREN:

So it would save

If the commission wanted

7

to review anything or discuss at all, should

8

they?

9

MR. JABLECKI:

I would suggest

10

waiting for the petitioner because technically

11

they have the burden of presenting the evidence

12

as to why the special use is necessary.

13

mean, we can definitely talk about some issues

14

with it especially if we're going to continue

15

it.

16
17

MR. MARTINEZ:

Can we make comments

without opening the public hearing right now?

18

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

19

MR. MARTINEZ:

20
21
22

I

He's saying -I was thinking in

terms of clarification.
CHAIRMAN MILLS:

I move we open the

public hearing.

23

MR. MAYER:

24

MR. BELUCH:

I'll second.
All in favor?
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1

(Chorus of ayes.)

2

MR. JABLECKI:

I'll note for the

3

record it's 6:35.

4

meeting, the public hearing to begin at

5

6:30 p.m. on Wednesday, November 14.

6

Petitioner is not present but the public

7

hearing has been opened so if there is some

8

discussion that you want to take place, you

9

can.

10

Notice was published of this

MR. MARTINEZ:

My question, and I

11

don't know that this even impacts the public

12

hearing, but in paragraph 2 of the staff report

13

current use conditions there's a little

14

discussion about the significant conditions

15

that would warrant this -- the issues so my

16

question is are there some sort of metrics on

17

the number of instances or occurrences, again,

18

of that nature or is it just sort of being

19

observed?

20

MR. COREN:

We have a staff report

21

which we sent out that includes code

22

enforcement that was done on the property to

23

show the history of that property.

24

during our proceedings for a lawsuit that was

We did that
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1

filed against them to do this so we do have a

2

number of pictures that show the conditions of

3

the property at different times.

4

certainly include that in the packet if they're

5

going to continue the meeting.

6

MR. MARTINEZ:

Right.

I can

You know, we

7

made note of it or staff made note of it, but

8

there's not really a lot of -- and I know that

9

it's there because it was legal proceedings

10
11

but -- that's all.
CHAIRMAN MILLS:

There are a couple

12

of recommendations from the city about what

13

this property should do in order to get the use

14

petition approved.

15

recommendations about the dumpster, fencing in

16

and putting the stuff away.

17

with them fencing in the actual property itself

18

because I think that would severely limit

19

access which they need in order to get cars and

20

vehicles in and out for repair.

21

I agree with the

MR. BELUCH:

I have a problem

That might also

22

visually impact issues if you screen it in if

23

somebody comes out on Sheridan Road.

24
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1

MR. JABLECKI:

I think at least the

2

city's biggest concern is the clutter out there

3

and I think the thought being that if there was

4

some fencing, it would almost force the

5

reduction in clutter, but if there were to be

6

some limitations put on as to the number of

7

cars that were allowed there, it might serve to

8

have the same effect.

9

MR. MARTINEZ:

I recall when this

10

property came in front of the zoning board of

11

appeals a long time back.

12

MR. MAYER:

I remember that.

13

MR. MARTINEZ:

And there was

14

conversation about the parking and the number

15

of cars and the usage of the large tow truck

16

and one of the things that kind of came up in

17

that discussion was this idea that a lot of

18

cars are there but aren't necessarily there for

19

any long-term period, they just need to have

20

them there to move things around basically.

21

This is probably more the petitioner's

22

conversation rather than ours.

23
24

MR. COREN:

It's a challenging small

site for that type of operation and our hope is
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1

to go through that and I think discuss what

2

conditions could be put on where we can find a

3

reasonable amount of clutter on the property of

4

cars.

5

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

One of the problems

6

with the property I think we, the city, have

7

sort of contributed to because they used to

8

park the tow trucks back on, was it Lakeside?

9

MR. MAYER:

No, it's Walker, right?

10

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

11

MR. FABBRI:

12

MR. COREN:

13

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

No.

I think it's Lakeside.
Lakeview.
Lakeview, yeah.

14

But they don't or can't do that anymore.

15

don't know which one.

16

MR. COREN:

I

I'm not sure on that if

17

they ever were allowed to.

18

parking spot availability on Lakeview for cars

19

but not overnight, but we also wouldn't let a

20

business vehicle permanently stage on that

21

street either.

22
23
24

MR. MARTINEZ:

Currently we have

That may be a

question for the petitioner.
CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Yeah, because I

L&L REPORTING SERVICES, INC. (847) 623-7580
03 13 2019 P&Z AGENDA PACKET 9 of 61

9

1

don't know whether they were ever allowed to do

2

that or not, but they did do it.

3

MR. COREN:

And I believe the

4

previous petition that came forward was for

5

Leonard's Towing which was a separate business

6

and that included a permanent tow truck.

7

not sure that Billy's Garage has that component

8

of their business so they might have tow trucks

9

that bring cars to that property, but I'm not

I'm

10

sure that they have any that are a permanent

11

part of their business and I don't believe

12

that's in their application so they might not

13

have to have their permanent tow truck as the

14

petition.

15

(Whereupon the proceedings were off

16

the record.)

17

MR. MARTINEZ:

18

That's right.

Was

this John's -- Leonard --

19

MR. MAYER:

It was more aesthetics.

20

MR. MARTINEZ:

21

MR. MAYER:

I remember.

And it was all about the

22

eyesore.

That's when we were really going

23

through town trying to get everybody to fix

24

their facades and yada, yada, yada.
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1

MR. MARTINEZ:

I think the place has

2

character for what that's worth.

3

MR. MAYER:

4

character.

5
6

I think Highwood is a

I love it here.
MR. BELUCH:

So does he have a tow

truck or no?

7

MR. FABBRI:

8

MR. MAYER:

9

MR. BELUCH:

I don't believe so.
I don't think so.
If he had more space,

10

you could force him to build a shed or garage

11

for it and park it in there.

12

I mean, maybe for another meeting we should

13

discuss on some of these businesses that we

14

can't amortize and give them 40-year life and

15

after that you can't do business as that

16

business.

17

were thinking that with Skokie Family Laundry

18

maybe 10, 15 years ago.

19

employs a lot of people.

I don't know how legal it is, but we

20

MR. MAYER:

21

MR. BELUCH:

22
23
24

There's no room.

140 Skokie Valley

I know.
But it's in the wrong

spot.
MR. MAYER:

But it was their facade

and that's when we were cleaning it up and they
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1

changed that facade and we said no more dry

2

cleaners in town.

3

MR. BELUCH:

4

landscaping or bushes.

5
6

Maybe if there's some

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

You love your

bushes.

7

MR. BELUCH:

Yes.

I don't have any.

8

I have a fence around my house, but I do like

9

bushes.

10
11
12
13
14

MR. MAYER:

Bridle bushes are nice,

though.
MR. BELUCH:

Maybe something like

that would work.
MR. COREN:

We'll try to find a date

15

to schedule the next meeting.

16

too close to the holidays.

17

available December 5th or 12th?

18

MR. MARTINEZ:

19

MR. BELUCH:

20

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

21

MR. FABBRI:

22

MR. CAMPOREALE:

23

MR. MAYER:

24

Try not to get

Are people

Sure.
I'm good.
Yeah.

I think I am.
Either one is fine.

I'm in the doghouse so I

have to show up.
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1

MR. COREN:

2

the 5th and the 12th.

3

further away from the holiday?

4
5

Any preference between
The 5th to stay even

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

5th works better

for me.

6

MR. COREN:

December 5.

7

MR. JABLECKI:

Okay.

So someone make a

8

motion to continue this public hearing to

9

December 5.

10
11

MR. MAYER:

I make a motion to

continue this public meeting until December 5.

12

MR. JABLECKI:

13

MR. MAYER:

14

6:30 p.m.

6:30 p.m.

Standard

operating procedure on a Wednesday.

15

MR. FABBRI:

Second.

16

MR. BELUCH:

All in favor.

17

(Chorus of ayes.)

18

MR. MAYER:

19

adjourn if that's okay.

20
21

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

24

First we've got to

close the public hearing.

22
23

I make a motion to

MR. MAYER:
open.

No, it's open.

It stays

That's so we don't have to reapply.
MR. MARTINEZ:

Do we have any other
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1

long-term items that we can talk about?

2

they're not on the agenda.

3

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

4

I know

I thought we had

somebody else that we were dealing with.

5

(Whereupon the proceedings were off

6

the record.)

7

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

8
9

I make had a motion

to adjourn.
MR. MAYER:

Second.

10

MR. BELUCH:

All in favor.

11

(Chorus of ayes.)

12

(Which were all the proceedings

13

had in the above-entitled

14

matter.)

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
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1
2

STATE OF ILLINOIS)
) SS:
COUNTY OF L A K E)

3
4

I, SUSAN L. BRUESCH, a notary public

5

within and for the County of Lake and State of Illinois,

6

do hereby certify that I am a Certified Shorthand

7

Reporter doing business in the County of Lake and State

8

of Illinois; that I reported the foregoing proceedings

9

by means of machine shorthand and that the foregoing is

10

a true and correct transcript of my shorthand notes

11

taken to the best of my ability as aforesaid.

12

I further certify that the reading and

13

signing of said proceedings was waived by the witness

14

and witness' counsel.

15

I further certify that the taking of

16

these proceedings was pursuant to notice and that there

17

were present at the taking of these proceedings counsel

18

on behalf of the plaintiff and counsel on behalf of the

19

defendant.

20

I further certify that I am not counsel

21

for, nor in any way related to any of the parties to

22

this suit, nor am I in any way interested in the outcome

23

thereof.

24
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1

In testimony whereof I have hereunto set

2

my hand and affixed my notarial seal this 17th day of

3

November, 2018, A.D.

4
5
6
7
8
9
10

__________________________
SUSAN L. BRUESCH, CSR
Notary Public, Lake County, IL
CSR License No. 084-003663

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
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CITY OF HIGHWOOD
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
17 Highwood Avenue
Highwood, Illinois

December 5, 2018
6:30 o'clock p.m.
RE:

Consideration of the Petition of
William Moorman, Billy's Garage
401 Sheridan Road, Highwood, Illinois
PIN #16-15-214-014
Special Use Permit

MEMBERS PRESENT:
FERGUSON MILLS, Chairman
ANTHONY BILOTTI, Commissioner
FRANK CAMPOREALE, Commissioner
PAUL FABBRI, Commissioner
PAUL MARTINEZ, Commissioner
CHRIS MEYER, Commissioner

STAFF PRESENT:
SCOTT COREN, City Manager
HOWARD JABLECKI, City Attorney
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2
3
4
5

INDEX
WITNESS:

PAGE:

William Moorman

5

6
7
8
9
10

EXHIBIT:
There were no additional exhibits
entered into the record.

11
12
13
14
15
16

Motion on the Special Use Permit

32

Second

32

Vote

32 - 33

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
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1

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Call the meeting to order.

2

Roll call.

3

Roman Beluch is absent.

4

Peter Biagi is absent.

5

Tony Bilotti?

6

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

7

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

8

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

9

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Here.

Frank Camporeale?

Paul Fabbri?

10

COMMISSIONER FABBRI:

11

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

12

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

13

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

14

Here I am.

Here.

Paul Martinez?
Here.

Caroline Mead is absent.

Chris Meyer?

15

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

16

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Here.

And Ferguson Mills is here.

17

So we are now in session.

18

Shall we have a chance to review the

19

minutes.

20

this thing, but I don't think they're important

21

enough to hold it up.

22
23

There are a couple minor pencil changes on

Motion to approve the minutes for
June 27th?
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1

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

2

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

3

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Second.

All those in favor?

4

(Chorus of ayes.)

5
6

I move.

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Okay.

Motion to reopen the

public hearing.

7

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI: So moved.

8

COMMISSIONER FABBRI: I'll second it.

9

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

10

-- 401 Sheridan Road.

All those in favor?

11

(Chorus of ayes.)

12

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

13

contribute to this?

14

MR. MOORMAN:

15

MR. COREN:

Anything additional to

I don't think so.
Chairman, can I just maybe go

16

through a little bit of the background so the

17

Commission can understand how we got to this point?

18

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

19

MR. COREN:

Sure.

Prior to my coming to Highwood,

20

Scott Hartman had sent notice to the owner of Billy's

21

Garage, John Cinqui, that there was a new business

22

operating from there and it needed a special use

23

permit.
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1

There was previously a special use

2

permit for Leonard's Garage, which was an auto body

3

repair shop and a towing company, which the Planning

4

and Zoning Commission or at the time the Zoning

5

Commission and then ultimately the City Council

6

approved.

7

With a new business operating from

8

that location, Scott Hartman, at that time, said you

9

need to come in for the special use permit.

After

10

that happened, he left, and I came on.

11

a year that had passed until I found that this was

12

something that he was pursuing, and I sent a notice

13

to the property owner, John Cinqui, that this needed

14

to get resolved even as there was a business

15

operating from that location.

It was about

16

We went back and forth for a while,

17

went through various degrees of saying he would get

18

it taken care of or he would have his son take care

19

of it or you know, he planned on taking care of it.

20

We got to the point where ultimately, we issued

21

citations to bring that essentially to traffic court

22

in Park City.

23

attorney and ended up filing a long-form complaint in

Following that we worked with our
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1

Waukegan.

2

forth with the attorneys, and ultimately came to a

3

settlement agreement where the current petitioner is

4

going through this process, which we're reviewing

5

like we would with any other special use permit, to

6

ultimately grant that.

After we filed that, we went back and

7

It's the City's position that as an

8

auto repair shop, with a new business opening in that

9

location, that it's required for a special use.

So

10

this hearing is for the special use.

11

body that's going to make a recommendation to the

12

Council on that special use permit and whether or not

13

there should be any conditions attached to the use of

14

that property.

15

This is the

We had discussed -- You can see in

16

the packet, the petitioner has filled out all the

17

proper paperwork.

18

A few other things to note on there

19

he did circulate an informal petition with some of

20

the other business owners, names and businesses, some

21

people from the community that said I have no

22

objection to Billy's Garage continuing use as an auto

23

repair facility at 401 Sheridan Road, Highwood,
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1

Illinois.

So there's that information.

2

Some things that we also included,

3

there was a previous agreement from previous

4

litigation in the late 1990s with John Cinqui.

5

part of his business, there were restrictions as to

6

the number of cars; how they could be positioned; the

7

condition of the property.

8

packet if people were interested in those types of

9

conditions.

10

As

I included that in the

I also included some different pictures

that were taken at various points.

11

Since we have entered into the

12

settlement agreement, they have made some

13

improvements to the property, such as the areas

14

around the dumpsters, whether or not the dumpsters

15

should be left out or put in all of the time, some

16

issues that the City cited previously.

17

some things the Commission wanted to consider, you

18

know, parking the vehicles over the sidewalk, parking

19

the vehicles in the parkway.

20

Commission wanted to consider any vehicles of certain

21

size restrictions.

22

tow trucks that are parked on the property

23

periodically.

There are

If there -- If the

So we do have, you know, large

Those are all things that the
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1

Commission could determine if they wanted to do that

2

along with the special use.

3

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

4

MR. COREN:

5

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

6

MR. COREN:

7

Doors.

I'm sorry.
Doors.

Those are other conditions that

the Commission could consider.

8

Am I missing anything?

9

that you want to --

10

MR. MOORMAN:

11

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

12

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

13

Anything

Nope.
Questions?
I assume this is

Mr. Moorman.

14

MR. MOORMAN:

15

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

16

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

Yes.
Okay.

Cool.

So it seems that the

17

pictures, because it's not explicitly -- It looks

18

like the pictures are pointing to more the three

19

vehicles parked say in area F and area A from the

20

diagram.

21

MR. COREN:

Correct.

And the previous

22

agreement from the late nineties was reviewed by the

23

attorneys and -AAA Court Reporting (847) 398-7666
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1

MR. MOORMAN:

Can I add though back then

2

during that parking agreement too that was a used car

3

dealership.

4
5

MR. COREN:

8
9

Correct.

It was a different

agreement and different use for those cars.

6
7

Those were cars that were for sale.

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

There's no cars for

sale.
MR. MOORMAN:

Never.

Yeah, and also, I

really do try to keep any big cars away.

I know a

10

couple of times Extreme Towing and Dave's Towing that

11

are around here, I do try to help them out when

12

they're in a pinch.

13

out of the parking lot.

14

MR. COREN:

I do try to keep the big stuff

Most of the pictures were taken

15

really at the time where we were still in litigation

16

with them.

17

more dated.

18

instance, of not parking on the sidewalk or some

19

things like that.

20

parked on parkways, and a lot of cars fit into a

21

relatively small spot on the site.

22
23

So you can see some of those are a little
I think they've done a better job, for

There are still sometimes cars

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:
there temporarily.

Those cars are parked

It's not the same car for an
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1
2

extended period of time, is that it?
MR. MOORMAN:

Mostly.

I do have a couple of

3

cars, including my plow truck, that have been sitting

4

there for some time.

5

about it so it's not the same one sitting there for

6

so long.

7

I definitely could do something

For the most part, most of the cars

8

they're in and out within a few days, depending on

9

what they're in for.

10
11
12

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

So the recommendation

from the City are what, Scott, if you would.
MR. COREN:

Really, we can go from everything

13

to denying it completely, to not allowing an auto

14

repair use on that property, to allowing it with no

15

conditions as is.

16

We do have some basis for going back

17

to some type of a 1990s agreement, although he's also

18

correct that that was really determined as a type of

19

used car lot.

20
21
22
23

I think ultimately, the --

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

It was a Citroen

dealership.
MR. COREN:

If you have any more on that, I

really, you know, don't have a ton of background on
AAA Court Reporting (847) 398-7666
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1

that.

2

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

I do, because I

3

used to go there.

4

his father.

5

were there for many years, and they had exotic cars

6

there.

7

it's pretty unusual around here.

8

and stuff, and that's what they worked on.

So

9

obviously, they didn't have a lot of them.

So you

It belonged to Enzo Castelli and

It was North Shore Auto Repair.

They

I mean, not that a Citroen is exotic, but
They had Maseratis

10

know, everybody went there and was kind of hey, let's

11

go look; but now it's like, let's not go look.

12

MR. COREN:

Having auto body type businesses

13

within the direct core of a downtown, as we see

14

within our own zoning code, is not -- It requires a

15

special use.

16

business core.

17

like this that's been in and out of operation for

18

quite some time, I don't know that the best solution

19

to that is restrict it completely; but I do think

20

that certain conditions, such as I think the easy

21

ones are you can't have cars blocking the sidewalk or

22

you can't have them in the --

23

It's not a desired use for that
So because we have had a business

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

Enclosing the
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1

garbage, the refuse.

2

enclosed; is it?

3
4

MR. MOORMAN:

Because it's not currently

It has been fixed.

We

re-concreted and everything, so.

5

MR. COREN:

So there are certain things like

6

that.

7

maintained and enclosed.

The dumpster enclosure, required to be

8

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

9

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

Yes.

And the parkway

10

plantar area is that used for parking occasionally

11

or?

12

MR. MOORMAN:

I'm assuming you're talking

13

about the outer half from the sidewalk of the little

14

section of the driveway there?

15

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

16

MR. MOORMAN:

17

You know, I don't have to.

18

just on that slab in between the road and the

19

sidewalk, so I didn't think it was too big of a deal.

20

If that is an issue, then certainly I can keep them

21

out of there.

22
23

Yes.

I park cars there pretty often.

COMMISSIONER FABBRI:

I had them, you know,

I think nothing across

the sidewalk and nothing on the parkways.

I think

AAA Court Reporting (847) 398-7666
03 13 2019 P&Z AGENDA PACKET 28 of 61

13

1

that should be a pretty basic condition.

2

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

3

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

4

Yeah.

What are your parking

options for this business?

5

It's a limited area they have.

6

MR. COREN:

Like with a lot of the other

7

properties that we have in Highwood, it's a limited

8

space.

9

driveways on multiple streets.

The nice thing about it, it has multiple

10

Avenue exit.

11

apron that you can get to.

12

You have the Walker

You have the Sheridan Road driveway

Someone else I think mentioned

13

keeping the bay doors closed.

14

things like that.

15

You can certainly do

In terms of staff recommendation, I

16

think we would want to lean toward that on trying to

17

keep the property up.

18

it be good to put some type of a screening, some type

19

of fence, some type of a wall.

20

property.

21

We generally looked at would

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

It's on a corner

I think there

22

should be a limitation on the number of cars that are

23

parked there.

That will make it look way better if
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1

there are fewer cars there.

2

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

But can't that just come

3

into a problematic of you never know when you're

4

going to have a lot of cars, and you can't control

5

that.

6

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

You never know how

7

the weather is going to be either.

8

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

9

I agree.

I concur.

I'm

just saying.

10

MR. COREN:

But you can put conditions on, I

11

don't think they're very well equipped to -- as an

12

extreme example, they shouldn't have semi trucks

13

there waiting to be repaired.

14

along those lines as to restricting the size of the

15

vehicle.

16
17
18

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

MR. MOORMAN:
infrequently.

20

now and again.

22
23

Do you work on semi

trucks?

19

21

So you know, something

Medium duty, very, very

Just those couple of tow trucks every
That's really it.

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

I mean, you maintain the

property, but he owns it, right?
MR. MOORMAN:

He does, yes.
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1

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

Do you see what they're

2

trying to say, with the aesthetics of our downtown,

3

we're trying to --

4

MR. MOORMAN:

5

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

Look better, correct.
At the same time, as

6

much as I appreciate the general trend toward making

7

the aesthetics of the town look better, it's also

8

been, you know, a garage or an auto dealership for a

9

really long time.

10

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

11

discharger response.

12

with it?

13

Well, that's the

What else are you going to do

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

Well, it's not even

14

that.

15

the neighbors are kind of okay with it.

16

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

17
18

You know, the informal petition suggests that

They're certainly

not the last word on it.
COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

No, absolutely not.

19

I'm not suggesting that that should be determinative

20

by any means, but just that you know, it's not

21

horrible.

22
23

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

Well, I don't want

to see the business shut down or taken away, but if
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1

it's maintained properly, it will work because it's

2

worked in the past.

3

it.

4

It just takes the effort to do

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

Then I would say I'd

5

make a motion to give him a special permit with the

6

conditions that no parking on the boulevard,

7

sidewalks, enclose the garbage, to make it

8

aesthetically pleasing and try to not have too many

9

customers at one time.

10
11
12
13
14
15

I don't know how else to

explain that.
MR. COREN:

The last one I think we need to

define a little more.
COMMISSIONER MEYER:

There is no defining it.

I did not define that well.
MR. COREN:

I'm certainly less concerned with

16

the petitioner that's here tonight, and you can

17

always have more concern with land owners.

18

want to be in, you know, a court position with a land

19

owner saying well, I want him to try not to have too

20

many cars.

21

it's a definitive numbers, if it's four, it's four;

22

if it's 24, it's 24.

23

I don't

I want to be able to say, you know, if

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

Can the special use

AAA Court Reporting (847) 398-7666
03 13 2019 P&Z AGENDA PACKET 32 of 61

17

1
2
3

permit be contingent upon these recommendations?
MR. COREN:

Yes.

So this is -- We issue the

special use permit on these conditions.

4

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE: Oh, before?

5

MR. COREN:

6

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

Correct.
What I was saying

7

is can you give him the special use permit after he

8

does what he has to do?

9

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

I think you renege on

10

the special use permit if these things aren't

11

followed.

12

MR. JABLECKI:

What you do is if you grant a

13

special use permit with conditions, and those

14

conditions are not complied with, there's a procedure

15

to revoke the special use.

16

situation where they're operating illegally.

17

And then you're back in a

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

This is a question

18

for the operator, the petitioner.

19

it be to have like during periods of more intensive

20

use allow for more cars outside and then during

21

periods say when the business is closed or whatever,

22

to kind of put them away.

23

if you need to work on cars inside, and you need to

How feasible would

You know, in other words,
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1

have the car on the lift or whatever, you know, can

2

you move a car out, work on whatever you need to work

3

on, then kind of put things away?

4

MR. MOORMAN:

5

trying to do that as well.

6

pull them in at night.

7

the garage, with the lift configuration, it's really

8

small.

9

usually fit about four or five cars inside if we

Yeah.

We certainly have been
If we have one try to

The problem is the inside of

So we don't have a whole lot of room.

We can

10

really jam them in there.

11

certainly try to at nighttime keep it as cleaned up

12

as possible; but again, we're really limited.

13

So we can, you know,

COMMISSIONER FABBRI:

How many cars do you

14

think, on average, do you have outside, just on your

15

average time, not when it's busy or slow?

16
17

MR. MOORMAN:

Average, I would say there's

probably, I would say around six or seven.

18

COMMISSIONER FABBRI: Because I was thinking

19

if we take the footprint of the building, if the

20

building has a 40 foot long front, and we say, you

21

know, he can park a car every say nine feet a parking

22

spot, we allow four cars in the front, and so many

23

cars.

I mean, somehow we have to come up with a
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1
2

number.

Scott's kind of getting that.
MR. COREN:

In looking at the pictures and

3

also looking at the diagram from what was out there

4

previously, so you would have an area that he can

5

have no more than three vehicles, another that you

6

can have, you know, another no more than three

7

vehicles, and then you have a space where you can

8

have four vehicles.

9

That doesn't include the area going west on Walker --

10
11

So that takes you up to 10.

going east on Walker.
COMMISSIONER FABBRI:

12

Going east on Walker.

I mean, you shouldn't have the front

13

entry blocked.

14

business standpoint, I'm guessing, but I don't know.

15

I mean, that's kind of -- from a

MR. COREN:

Yeah, I think especially as you

16

go east on that, you also need space.

17

going to be coming in and out.

18

the bays.

19

there at the same time.

20

he's able to work around that, by having customers,

21

you know, either park on street parking or use the

22

lot across the way on Walker to go over, that might

23

open some extra space for parking storage as opposed

Some cars are

They are going into

Also, you know, parking for customers
Now, if you -- Ultimately,
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1

to trying to move those in and out.

2

to be, I'm sure, a little bit of a challenge too, if

3

you're looking to drive one way out while another is

4

blocked in, you're coming around Walker to find

5

another spot, so you can back another one out.

6

sure it's tough on the business.

7

COMMISSIONER FABBRI:

8

to keep a business flowing.

9
10

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

Right.

But it does get

They're trying

Is area F enclosed

completely?

11

I'm trying to remember what is that

12

area F on this.

13

packet, the photo?

14

Is that shown on page 89 of the

MR. COREN:

That's -- The people that can't

15

see my screen, that's the furthest north corner,

16

that's not a corner, on Sheridan Road.

17
18

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

MR. COREN:

20

there's the north arrow.

21

23

The north boundary

east car display area is Clucker's basically.

19

22

I'm

It's over here on the north where

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

Clucker's is over

here.
MR. COREN:

The north boundary that's the
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1

building.

2
3

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:
open area?

4

Sorry, I'm just trying --

5

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

6

fence in between.

7

MR. COREN:

8

area.

9

main entrance.

10
11

So that's really an

I thought that was a

Yes, there's -- F is an open

F would be on this area in front of the

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

So B, C, D, E are

parking spaces?

12

MR. COREN:

Correct.

So they're essentially

13

saying for that point if they were sales vehicles,

14

they could be parked visibly on Sheridan Road.

15

you used the same number of vehicles as you would

16

have on this, there would be essentially 10 to 12

17

allowed on that site, not including the east area on

18

Walker.

19

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

If

There is no tow truck

20

parking really.

21

diagram that says tow truck parking area, that's just

22

car parking area.

23

MR. COREN:

I mean, for like a tow truck.

Correct.

This

And that was the
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1

difference between the 10 and the 12.

2

you could fit two extra cars over there if that's

3

what you allowed.

4

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

It looks like

I don't know if you've

5

ever explored talking to another property owner about

6

when you have a full load, perhaps renting a space or

7

you know, for situations where there literally isn't

8

enough.

9

MR. MOORMAN:

I haven't.

I haven't too much.

10

I know that there's not a whole lot of space around

11

me.

12

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

13

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

14

MR. MOORMAN:

15
16

Caputo's.
He won't do it.

I'll start giving out $5.00

gift cards to Clucker's, so you could park there.
MR. COREN:

What happens when you have more

17

cars and more demand than you have space on the lot

18

currently?

19

MR. MOORMAN:

Well, I have had times before

20

where I had just to turn people down if I don't have

21

anywhere to put the car.

22

anywhere.

23

accommodate them to come back, and sometimes they

You know, I don't have

So sometimes there can -- you know, I can
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1
2

just have to go somewhere else.
COMMISSIONER MEYER:

I would maybe talk to,

3

and I'm not saying it's going to happen, but Howie.

4

You know, his parking lot is not always full.

5

thought, it's right down the street.

6
7
8
9
10
11
12

MR. COREN:
somewhat.

It depends --

MR. COREN:

temporary.

18

So our other properties aren't

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

14

17

Oh, I didn't even go

I was thinking of staging, like a

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

Nightingales has a

huge lot.
COMMISSIONER MEYER:
Forget about it.

That thing is filled.

That thing is coveted.

19

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

20

MR. MOORMAN:

21
22
23

It's

zoned to allow for --

there, I'm sorry.

16

I'm asking him to.

He's saying Caputo's won't do it.

13

15

We probably have to be careful

COMMISSIONER MEYER:
an idea.

Just a

Yes, it is.

I wouldn't even ask to park my

bicycle in there, it would get towed.
COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

Let me ask you,

about Lake View, is there -- That's the street back
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1

there.

Isn't there a lot of cars that don't park

2

there?

Leonard got special permission to keep his

3

tow truck there -- I might be wrong.

4

MR. COREN:

5

Leonard's Towing.

6
7

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE: Because he helped
out the city.

8
9

There were some conditions with

MR. COREN:

I think there were some formal

and some informal arrangements prior to me being

10

here.

11

point, probably three years ago.

12

trying to solve a lot of problems with Leonard's

13

Towing that just a lot of those agreements weren't

14

working out.

15

city lots and things like that.

16

having problems with the current petitioner, like we

17

are that if it were Leonard's Towing back here again,

18

I think we'd be recommending denial.

19

we're seeing here though.

20
21

I talked to Scott Hartman about it at one
I know they were

That he was towing different cars to

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

We're certainly not

It's not what

I think the last time

this came through special use when it was --

22

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

23

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

John's.
Yeah, when it was
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1

Johns, and whatever else, that is a big objection we

2

didn't want to have the towing on it because towing

3

had a particularly bad reputation in the city.

4

you know, I think it's come a long way.

5

heard any kind of -- Well, I haven't really heard

6

anything bad about it from anyone, so.

7
8

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

I haven't

You only complain if

your car gets towed.

9
10

So

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

A lot of cars got

towed.

11

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

12

MR. COREN:

They did.

Have you thought about any type

13

of a limit on cars or do you know how many cars you

14

can fit on that property currently if they are just

15

passenger cars?

16

MR. MOORMAN:

Off the top of my head, no.

17

It's like a Tetris game in my head, but I mean, I

18

have -- I have a couple of cars that are mine that

19

are there right now.

20

sitting there.

21

I think I could fit things a little better around

22

there.

23

seven cars or so.

Like my plow truck has been

I could get out of there.

You know,

Because we usually -- We usually are around
We do have times where everybody
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1

comes at once, and we're really jammed in there.

2

the most part, I think we can keep it pretty opened

3

up.

4

For

We get messed up though when we get

5

cars with like a broken ball joint and it doesn't

6

move, and it gets dropped off by a tow truck at night

7

in a bad spot, then we're kind of stuck with it for a

8

little bit.

9

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

So I guess the fourth

10

thing that we're stuck on would be -- Do you really

11

want a number, like a 10?

12

MR. COREN:

13

It really doesn't have to be a

number.

14

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

15

aesthetically, he gets it.

16

not looking like a used car sell.

17

to define that.

18
19
20
21
22
23

MR. COREN:

I think that
Keeping it as clean and
I don't know how

Is there any objection to the

size of the vehicles also?
COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

I don't think there

should be semis there or big tractor trailers.
COMMISSIONER MEYER:

He says he doesn't

really work on semis.
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1
2

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

dump trucks aren't going to look good there.

3
4

Or even big giant

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

Can the garage even

really handle like a --

5

MR. MOORMAN:

No.

Really the only -- The

6

truck that's in that picture, I've probably worked on

7

three times ever.

8

here, he has one truck that size that I service every

9

now and again, but it's usually I'll pull it in and

Then Extreme Towing, right in town

10

do the service, and he'll come and take it out right

11

away.

12

then anything other than that, I mean, I work on a

13

few dump trucks for landscaping companies.

14

your average, you know, pick-up size dump truck, it's

15

not a huge semi or anything like that.

Again, I don't have anywhere to put it.

16

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

17

place to park it permanently.

18
19
20
21
22
23

And

Those are

Extreme Towing has his own

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

South Central

Avenue.
COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

He parks it on the

street, yeah.
MR. COREN:

So I guess we could, you know,

put a condition on nothing larger than a pick-up
AAA Court Reporting (847) 398-7666
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1

truck if it's not being worked on currently within

2

the garage.

3

keep that business and have that work done in the

4

garage while keeping it off the front area.

5

So that allows him to potentially still

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

And during the day

6

is one thing.

7

thing.

8

until opening time, it's going to look a lot better.

9

During the day, you have to do what you have to do

10

I think after it's closed is another

Because if it looks good from closing time

during the day, for the most part.

11

MR. COREN:

Okay.

So if I'm -- Does the

12

Commission agree with that in trying to come up with

13

language?

14

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

15

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

16

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

17

MR. COREN:

18

up to be outside.

I do.

I do.

So no vehicles larger than a pick

19

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

20

MR. COREN:

21

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

22

MR. COREN:

23

I do.

Overnight.

On display between -After closing.

Between closing time and opening

time.
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1
2

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:
hours.

3

MR. COREN:

4

MR. MOORMAN:

5

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

6

During non-business

Is that -That works for me.
When we have a particularly

heavy snow, what do you do with it, haul it away or?

7

MR. MOORMAN:

Um, I haven't had too much of a

8

problem with it.

9

front-brick area where the light pole is there, the

Usually it gets pushed into the

10

front area.

11

alley and pushed out across the street into that kind

12

of like where the empty lot is where the Clark used

13

to be.

The rest of it just gets pushed to the

14

MR. COREN:

15

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

So I have those four.

16

boulevard, you mean parkway?

17

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

18
19
20
21

We use the phrase

Again, the parkway

what is the restriction typically?
MR. COREN:

Generally, you're not supposed to

have cars.
COMMISSIONER MEYER:

Just like on your

22

street, you're not supposed to park on your

23

boulevard.

It's the same concept.

Parkway -- I like
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1

boulevard better.

2

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

Of course, the

3

sidewalk you don't ever want to block.

4

your vehicles are temporarily there or are they there

5

all day?

6

MR. MOORMAN:

The parkway

The ones that get put on the

7

parkway are usually the ones that are only going to

8

be there for a short period of time.

9

MR. COREN:

One other thing, I'm just

10

noticing too, the signage on the building.

11

see -- Do you currently have your garage -- a sign on

12

your garage --

13

MR. MOORMAN:

14

MR. COREN:

15
16

I do not.
-- indicating the business?

I think our code we need to have
that too.

17
18

I don't

So add that condition.
Have you ever looked at putting a

sign on the business?

19

MR. MOORMAN:

I'd like to.

I know we were

20

trying to do something years ago and then just a mess

21

and a snowball effect, and here we are, so.

22
23

MR. COREN:
also.

That's a code condition anyway

So let's put that he needs to get that done in
AAA Court Reporting (847) 398-7666
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1

the next six months.

2

MR. MOORMAN:

3

MR. COREN:

Yeah, that would be great.
An approved sign describing the

4

business and name must be approved by the ARC and

5

directed within the next six months.

6

put.

7

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

8

MR. JABLECKI:

9

I so make that motion.

We need to first close the

public hearing, itself.

10

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

11

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

12

close the public hearing --

13

MR. JABLECKI:

14

180 days we'll

Oh, I'm sorry.
I'll make a motion to

And ask for any input from the

public first.

15

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

16

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

I did at the very beginning.
I think to close it out

17

you have to say does anybody else -- It's kind of

18

redundant, but...

19
20

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Anybody else have any

questions or input?

21
22
23

(No response.)
MR. JABLECKI:

You could have a motion to

close the public hearing.
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1
2

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

I'll move to close

the public hearing.

3

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

4

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

I second it.

All those in favor?

5

(Chorus of ayes.)

6

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

I make a motion to

7

accept the special permit use with the -- Are we up

8

to five things with the signage, and those five

9

things I think we all know, but if you want to repeat

10

them.

11

MR. COREN:

Those are that the dumpster

12

enclosure must be fixed and enclosed and maintained

13

properly; that no cars can be parked across the

14

sidewalks; that no cars can be parked on the

15

parkways/boulevards; that no vehicles larger than a

16

pick-up truck shall be outside on display between

17

closing time and opening time; and finally, an

18

approved sign describing the business and name must

19

be approved by the ARC and erected within the next

20

180 days.

21

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

22

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

23

Second.

We need a roll call on this

one.
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1

Meyer?

2

COMMISSIONER MEYER:

3

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

4

COMMISSIONER FABBRI:

5

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

6

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

7

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

8
9

Yes.

Fabbri?
Yes.

Camporeale?
Yes.

Mills, yes.

Bilotti?
COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

Yes.

10

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

11

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

12

MR. COREN:

Martinez?
Yes.

So the next steps are this

13

recommendation now goes to the City Council for the

14

December 18th meeting.

15

the Whole at 6:00 p.m. on the 18th, followed by a

16

City Council meeting at 7:30.

17

formal approval will be considered.

There will be a Committee of

18

MR. MOORMAN:

19

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

20
21

Okay.

That's where the

Sounds good.
Any other matters

coming before that we need to schedule?
MR. COREN:

We likely will have one.

Maybe

22

it's good to schedule that now, and I can just let

23

everybody know if it doesn't go through.
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1
2

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

We want to make sure

we have a quorum.

3

MR. COREN: I don't think we're going to be

4

able to schedule it more than 15 days of the next

5

Council meeting.

January 9th or 16th.

6

COMMISSIONER BILOTTI:

7

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

8

It's okay for me.
Prefer the 16th, but

whatever.

9

MR. COREN:

Are we okay for January 16th?

10

COMMISSIONER CAMPOREALE:

11

MR. COREN:

Yes.

I'll send an e-mail tomorrow so

12

all members have that, and we'll use that if we need

13

to.

14
15
16

Thanks everyone for your time.
COMMISSIONER MEYER:

I make a motion to

adjourn.

17

COMMISSIONER MARTINEZ:

18

CHAIRMAN MILLS:

Second.

All in favor?

19

(Chorus of ayes.)

20

(The meeting adjourned

21

at 7:07 p.m.)

22
23
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1

STATE OF ILLINOIS

2

COUNTY OF COOK

)
)
)

3
4

I, DEBORAH R. SANTI, Certified Shorthand

5

Reporter, of the State of Illinois, do hereby certify

6

that I reported in shorthand the proceedings had in

7

the aforesaid matter, and that the foregoing is a

8

true, complete and correct transcript of the

9

proceedings had as appears from the stenographic

10

notes so taken to the best of my ability.

11
12
13
14
15
16

DEBORAH R. SANTI, CSR
CSR # 084-004107

17
18
19
20
21
22
23
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CITY OF HIGHWOOD
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

Public Hearing
Wednesday, March 13, 2019 6:30 PM

Request:

Property in
Question

320 Green Bay Road
PIN 16-15-405-032

Owner:

Michael Koenitz-Hudac, Preservation Properties

Applicant:

Yoni Marquez – Fresh Cafe

Zoning District

MX-2

Application for Zoning Variance to Sections 11-8-5 Required Parking Spaces

Summary: The property is currently a vacant space on Green Bay Road in a MX-2 Residential MixedUse District. The building had previously been occupied by a chiropractor business. The surrounding
area is a mix of commercial and residential use. Across the street is a row of 2-hour parking adjacent
to the UPRR tracks; other businesses in the vicinity include Nora’s Skin Care, Santi’s, Humble Pub,
Cortes De Cabello Dely Haircuts, VIP Stone and Tile, Papa’s Cigar Shop, Gourmet Frog, and
Froggy’s.
The applicant seeks to establish their own catering café that will offer fresh and healthy foods called
Fresh Café. Fresh Café offers carry-out, catering, and delivery service, providing juices, deli
sandwiches, and coffee. Three tables and six chairs will be placed inside for customers to wait for
their carry-out orders, according to the petitioner, the café is not intended for dining in nor does the
owners believe it will become a dine-in establishment. The floor plan indicates 1102 square feet of
space.
The petitioner does not conform under City Code 11-8-5 (A) Business and Commercial Uses: Fast
food, drive-ins, and carryout establishments “At least 15 parking spaces per 1,000 square feet of floor
area, plus at least one parking space for each four persons based upon the maximum number of
persons that can be accommodated at the same time in accordance with the design capacity.” As the
property does not have any off-street parking, there is no offset of private spaces to the parking
requirement. The shortage is calculated as follows:
0.015 spaces per square foot for a carryout establishment x 1102 square feet = 16.53 spaces
1 space per four person dining capacity (6 chairs) = 1.5 spaces
16.53 spaces for floor area + 1.5 spaces for dining capacity = 18.03 spaces
Section 11-8-4 (G) requires “When a determination of the number of off street parking spaces
required by this title results in a requirement of a fractional space, the fraction shall be counted as one
parking space.” Therefore the parking shortfall is 19 spaces.
In accordance with the current schedule of fees established by the City of Highwood, the assessment
in lieu of parking spaces is $150 per space for the first 20 spaces, which would require a payment of
$2,850 to the City of Highwood parking fund. The property in question has an underlying zoning of
MX-2 District and the proposed use is permitted within this zoning district. No other zoning relief is
requested or appears to be necessary.

1
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Staff Review and Comment: Staff recommends approval of the variance. The business type is
permitted and desirable in the MX-2 district. A strict application of the zoning code for parking
shortfall would likely prevent this desirable use from opening in many locations in the downtown
district as requiring the purchase of property to meet the parking requirements would be restrictively
expensive, and few properties are available to convert to parking in this area.
Public Comments Received: No written comments have been received regarding this petition.

If the Planning & Zoning Commission considers recommending the granting of a variance the
following minimum conditions would be recommended:
Conditions:
1. That the Petitioner be subject to an assessment in lieu of the required parking spaces in the
amount of $2,850.
2. That the Petitioner shall comply with such other or appropriate requirements imposed by the
City for the proposed improvements including but not limited to recommendations of the
Appearance Review Committee, City Engineer, City Planner, City Building Consultant and/or
City Staff for the construction and maintenance of the proposed improvements on the
premises.
3. That the Petitioner pays all costs incurred by the City of Highwood for the zoning proceedings
and any costs incurred by the City of Highwood related to the processing, review and
enforcement of this proposal.

Notification: Legal notice was posted in the Lake County News Sun in the State of Illinois, County of
Lake. A sign providing notice of this public hearing was posted on the property.
Submitted by Scott Coren, City Manager

2
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CITY OF HIGHWOOD - PETITION FOR A VARIATION
GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS
1. Please type or print legibly;

2. If more room is required for any answer, attach an Exhibit;
3. Include twelve (12) copies of all "required documents." Required documents

include: a lease (if you are a tenant), a deed or title policy, a site plan, a current
plat-of-survey and plans showing elevation(s) and/ or floor plan;
4. Include a check payable to the City of Highwood in the sum of S600.00 (3 or less units)
or S900.00 (4 or more units and Commercial) being the application fee;
5. If applicable, include a copy of the Lake County Soil and \v'ater Conservation District
application. Please indicate the date of filing of said application.

APPLICATION
1. Name, address, telephone number(s) Q1ome, work, fax, pager, and cellular) and e-mail
address of applicant.

\ 1Dn·,

\'-i\cwq.ue- z
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J_. <f::L/ . e /cc/m a ue. \16ni _ tv\<Atq-<x.2- 5.'.2- @,,\.\J:).,\ \oo .C..oh-)
~CLU 1t~ ClV\ .n.- 6<K> e5 S2. Name, address, telephone number(s) (home, work, fax, pager, and cellular) and e-mail
address of attorney for applicant.

IV /Ir

3. Name, address, telephone number(s) (home, work, fax, pager, and cellular) and e-mail
address of owner of property (fee holder). If the property owner is different than
applicant please specify why applicant is legally authorized to present this petition.
Include written proof of such authority (e.g. Power of Attorney). Include a copy of the
deed or title insurance policy showing title in the property owner.

(2e,.fefe-V\te
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4. Indicate when and how the property owner acquired title to tl1e property for which a
variance is sought. If you are not tl1e property owner, state your interest in the property
and be prepared to provide documentation of your interest at tlle hearing.

cur

1+ fur
purpo-sc:._.. ylani' ni on ovt,n
CL C_o.,fe; Fa:..,used

In,+-eve hl 1n pro pt(+~

buf~::t:>ne ":>

I5

·-to

u,se_

1' (\_~

DY'\ u)H'-LOU-\- c1 Ca{-e_{\V\_% 0:r

~{c'__~Y\.

t1 Y\(20l"1V\\\ fuoc\'S.

5. Provide tl1e legal description, common address and parcel identification number of tlle
property.

Cit-fo.Chec{

1~ Cl

eci~t of deed

for lf~Gl \ clesc, \?+\OY'\

( YJ:2N) l b 1S-4D~o326. State the Zoning District in which tl1e property is located.

A-carcllr1~ +o Oowntown ctA.(·':r\-,,C:'::\0 XmClge tl-G
Prope(·fy l<o locCL+ee,,t LY'I mx :l- 1 f2-e0,d(\/\·t-Cd m\)( al1'S+(\Cf7. State tlle scope of tlle \vork and indicate the specific ,'ariation you are requesting. .Attach
such diagrams, drawings or otl1er information as may be useful to tlle Planning and
Zoning Commission in understanding your variation. You must indicate the specific
sections of the Highwood Zoning Code for which tlle variation is sought.

IY\t_
W (\ \

,eque-~+

\.JC Cl

o.Y\Cl '::>pc~

ts fur ~y~\ ,~ 'c:>'v\<Y(-\- fcL\\. oc.cuyont\\ fox ~~e._
't()ta.\ Of- LO\ w,m C\~'V\OK \,ffiCJ-+ \-e.~ foox- -emy>\O'-\t~'S

re,

cs,x:

ytttroY\~

-to tS\+.

8. Explain why tlle proposed variation or use is in harmony with tlle surrounding
construction or use.
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9. Explain why the variation or use is not objectionable to the surrounding residents.
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10. Explain why strict application of the provisions of the Highwood Zoning Code would
deprive you of any reasonable use of tlle land. Remember, mere loss in value will not
justify a Yariation; there must be a deprivation of beneficial use of tlle land.
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11. Explain why the variation or special use is only a minor deviation of the provisions of
the Highwood Zoning Ordinance.
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12. Describe in detail the current use(s) of the property (for example, single-family, duplex,
multi-family, type(s) of business use) . .As applicable, describe the number of residential
units, layout of the property, layout of each unit, size (square footage), and occupancy of
the units of same and/ or whether the property is used for residential or business
purposes. .Also, indicate the parking plan, number of parking spaces and vehicles used
by occupants of the property. Use an attachment, if necessary.
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13. Explain any other relevant factors which should be considered by the Planning and
Zoning Commission. (Such as the hardship that will occur if the variation is not granted).
If your application is for a Special Use Permit, include an explanation as to your
compliance with the requirements for same.

(V /fl

14. Please note any dates on which you cannot attend a Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting, as your attendance is required to present the petition. Note: these are
traditionally scheduled weekday evenings at the Highwood City Hall, 17 Highwood
.Avenue, Highwood, Illinois, 60040.

/\I/ }4-

15. State the name, address and telephone number of any witness you intend to use.
Further, if your neighbors do not object to the variation, try to obtain and include
written statements from them.
\/0-~ \On
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I, the undersigned being duly sworn on oath depose and state that I have read the abo-ve and
foregoing petition by me subscribed, that the same is tme in substance and in fact. Further,
I am the owner of the property for which a variation is sought, or am otherwise authorized
by law to present this petition.

Date

CONSENT OF OWNER
I, the undersigned being duly sworn on oath depose and state that I have read the above and
foregoing petition. Further, I am the owner of the property for which a variation is sought
and consent to the hearing of this petition. I acknowledge that the costs of zoning
proceedings may be assessed to the petitioner and/ or property owner.

~~-Signature of Petitioner

Date
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TRUSTEE'S DEED

File7526684

THIS AGREEMENT, made this
3/~ day of October, 2018,
between FRANCES GUIDARINI,
TRUSTEE OF THE GENERAL
FUND TRUST UNDER THE
JOHN
F.
GUIDARINI
REVOCABLE TRUST DATED
JANUARY 19, 2004, Granto1· and PRESERVATION PROPERTIES GROUP, LLC, 318 & 320
GREEN BAY ROAD, 428 Green Bay Rd., 1S!lf; Highwood, Illinois, Grantees; WlTNESSETH, that
Grantor, in consideration of the sum ofTEN and no/lOO's ($10.00) DOLLARS, receipt whereof is hereby

acknowledged, and in pursuance of the power and authority the Grantor hereunto enabling, does hereby
CONVEY and WARRANT unto the Grantees, the following described real estate situated in the County
of Lake, in the State oflllinois, to wit:
SEE ATTACHED FOR LEGAL DESCRJPTION
PJN# 16-15-405-032- eooo
ADDRESS OF PROPERTY : 318-320 Green Bay Rd., Highwood, Illinois 60040.
together with the tenements, hereditaments and appurtenances thereunto belonging or in ,my wise
appe11aining.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor, as Trustee, as aforesaid, has hereunto set his hand and sea l the
day and year first above written.

UNDER THE JOHN F.
JANUARY 19, 2004

J : ~~~ NERAL FUND TRUST
GUIDARINI REVOCABLE TRUST DATED

State of Illinois, County of Lake, SS, I, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for said County, in the
State aforesaid, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that FRANCES GUIDARINI, TRUSTEE OF THE
GENERAL FUND TRUST UNDER THE JOHN F. GUIDARINl REVOCABLE TRUST DATED
JANUARY 19, 2004, personally known to me to be the same person whose name is subscribed to the

foregoing instrument appeared before me this day in person, and acknowledged that he signed, sealed and
delivered the said instrument as his free and voluntary ac t, for the uses and purposes therein set forth ,
including the release and waiver of the right of homestead .
Given under my hand and notarial seal this

Notary Public

3 1J.Y day of October, 2018.
"OFFICIAL SEAL"
CHRISTINE HALL

' NOTARY PUBLIC, STATE OF ILLINOIS
, MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 11/15/2021

)
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LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Lot I of Piacenza' s Resubdivision of part of Lot 54 in Everts and Jefferys Division of Highwood in
Section 14 and 15, Township 43 North, Range 12, East of the Third Principal Meridian, according to the
Plat thereof, recorded December 31, 1969 as Document 1447065 in Lake County, Illinois.

SUBJECT TO: GENERAL TAXES FOR 2018 AND SUBSEQUENT YEARS; EASMENTS,
COVENANTS AND RESTRlCTIONS OF RECORD.
This instrument was prepared by:

Thomas F. Meyer
33 N. Waukegan Rd ., Suite I 05
Lake Bluff, IL 60044

Send Subsequent Tax Bills To:

Preservation Properties Group, LL~ -

~ t reen Bay Rd.
Highwood, IL 60040

MAILTO:
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LEGAL NOTICE
CITY OF HIGHWOOD, ILLINOIS
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
The City of Highwood Planning and Zoning Commission will conduct a public hearing
on March 13, 2018 at 6:30 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the Highwood City Hall, 17
Highwood Avenue, Highwood, Illinois, to consider the petition of Yoni Marquez
(hereinafter “Petitioner”), for a variance to the City’s off-street parking requirements of
Chapter 8, Section 11-8-5 for the property commonly known as 318-320 Green Bay
Road, Highwood, Illinois 60040 (PIN#16-15-405-032), being a building in the MX-2
Zoning District.
This petition in its entirety is available for inspection at the Highwood City Hall.
Individuals with a disability requiring a reasonable accommodation in order to participate
in the meeting should contact City Hall at 847.432.1924 prior to the meeting. All persons
interested should attend and will be given an opportunity to be heard. The hearing may
be continued from time to time without further public notice.

Highwood Planning and Zoning Commission
17 Highwood Avenue
Highwood, Illinois 60040

336086_1
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